Surrey Civilian-Military Partnership Board
Agenda
Army Reserve Centre, Guildford Road, Farnham, GU9 9QB
10.00 am, Wednesday, 21 March 2018
Please note this meeting is held in private and is not open for the public to attend.
The papers are published on the website for information only.
Contact: Sarah Goodman, Community Partnerships Team, Surrey County Council, Tel
01483 518095 or email armedforces@surreycc.gov.uk
Board Members
Mr Peter Martin

Chairman

Col Simon Browne

11 Infantry Brigade

Canon Peter Bruinvels

SCC Civilian Military Liaison Advisor

Michael Cannon

Community Integration Task Group

Col Bob Crawley

ssafa

Col Patrick Crowley

SERFCA

Brigadier Paul Evans DL

Recognise and Remember Task Group

Debbie Goldsmith

Garrison Representative

Mr Richard Hampson

County Council

Brigadier Phil Kimber

11 Infantry Brigade

Councillor John Kingsbury

Woking Borough Council

Mr Peter Martin

Chairman

Major Carol Miller

ATC Pirbright

Mr Michael More-Molyneux

Lord-Lieutenant

Mr David Munro

Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner

Vacant

Guildford Diocese

Steve Owen-Hughes

Surrey Fire and Rescue

Louise Punter

Surrey Chambers of Commerce

Phil Small

11 Infantry Brigade

Craig Spence

Royal British Legion

Karen Whelan

Surrey Heath Borough Council

1

1

Welcome and Apologies

Chairman

Peter
Bruinvels

2

Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising
a) ATC (Pirbright) Pass Out Parade dates (attached)
b) Task Force Commander Toolkit
c) Veterans’ Mental Health and STP commissioning
intentions (attached)

Karen
Simmonds

(Pages 3 14)

3

Outcomes for Service Children in Surrey

Susie
Campbell

(To Be
Tabled)

4

11 Brigade Update

Col Simon
Browne

(Verbal
Report)

5

Armed Forces Covenant Fund

Sarah
Goodman

(Pages 15 16)

6

Forces Connect South East

Amanda
Barnes

(Pages 17 18)

7

SCMPB Exec and Task Group Update
a) SCMPB Successes and Surrey Covenant Audit
(attached)
b) Recognise and Remember
i.
Fire Service Memorial
ii.
WW1 100 Commemorations
iii.
RAF 100

Brig Paul
Evans
(Pages 19 54)
Michael
Cannon

c) Community Integration
d) Task Force Commanders and Armed Forces
Champions Event

8

Surrey Covenant Conference

9

AOB
a) National Covenant Conference – 22 February 2018
b) SERFCA – Ash Manor School CCF (attached)
c) RLC and DMRC Headley Court relocation
d) Duke of Cornwall Awards

10

Chairman

Date of next meeting
10am on Thursday 11 October – venue TBC

2

Peter
Bruinvels
James
Painter

(Pages 55 56)

Chairman
Col
Crowley
Peter B
James P

(Pages 57 58)

Item 2

SURREY CIVILIAN-MILITARY PARTNERSHIP BOARD

Minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2017, 256 (City of London) Field
Hospital, 19 Portsmouth Road, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 2QX.

1

Present:
Col Simon Browne
Canon Peter Bruinvels
Michael Cannon
Col Bob Crawley
Col Patrick Crowley
Brigadier Paul Evans DL
Debbie Goldsmith
Sarah Goodman
Craig Jones
Councillor John Kingsbury
Mr Peter Martin
Major Carol Miller
Michael More-Molyneux
James Painter
Louise Punter
Karen Simmonds

11 Infantry Brigade
SCC Civilian Military Liaison Advisor
Community Integration Task Group
ssafa
SERFCA
Recognise and Remember Task Group
Garrison Representative
Surrey County Council
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
St Johns and Hook Heath
Chairman
ATC Pirbright
Lord-Lieutenant
Surrey County Council
Surrey Chambers of Commerce
Public Health, SCC

Apologies:
Mr Richard Hampson
Brigadier Phil Kimber
David Munro
Steve Owen-Hughes
Trevor Pugh
Phil Small
Craig Spence
Karen Whelan

County Council
11 Infantry Brigade
Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner
Surrey Fire and Rescue
Surrey County Council
11 Infantry Brigade
Royal British Legion
Surrey Heath Borough Council

WELCOME FROM 256 (CITY OF LONDON) FIELD HOSPITAL [Item 1]
Capt Kevin Haresign welcomed the SCMPB to 256 (City of London) Field
Hospital and invited Warrant Officer David Barkworth to give an overview of
the role of the Unit.

Page 1 of 6

Page 3

The Chairman thanked 256 Field Hospital for the presentation and for kindly
hosting the meeting.
2

WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES [Item 2]
Peter Martin welcomed everyone to the meeting and noted the apologies
from:
 David Munro – Police and Crime Commissioner (Craig Jones
representing)
 Steve Owen-Hughes – Surrey Fire and Rescue Service
 Trevor Pugh – SCC Director of Environment and Infrastructure
 Mr Richard Hampson – County Councillor
 Craig Spence – The Royal British Legion
.

3

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING [Item 3]
ATC (Pirbright) – Armed Forces Champions and SCMPB members would be
welcome to attend future Passing Out Parades at ATC (Pirbright) spring/summer dates will be circulated. Action: Peter Bruinvels/Jenny
Harvey
The Tool Kit for Task Force Commanders in the south east is in the process
of being completed and will be promoted to the MoD as best practice. Action:
Peter Bruinvels
Education – Admissions for service children is working well and most are
getting in to their first choice schools. A few schools have large numbers of
service children, but the majority have small numbers.
Performance figures (which have not yet been verified) suggest that service
children are not performing as well as would be wished within schools and it
was noted that these figures are borne out nationally. This is something that
SCC is investigating. SCC is leading on a cross border application to the
Covenant Fund to support service children, which should positively impact on
their education attainment results.
It was noted by several members that it is a real challenge to get the parents
of service children to engage with schools. It was further commented that
often families have an unrealistic expectation about what the service pupil
premium should be spent on eg school uniform or trips, and more education
was required.
Action: Sarah Goodman/Peter Bruinvels/Mark Scarborough – Education
to be added to the March agenda. To:
 Look at Service children attainment for Key Stage 3 and 4
 Raise issue with Primary and Secondary Phase Councils
 Educate service families on correct use of service pupil premium
 Submit Education bid to MoD – consider whether families could be
brought in as part of the bid
Fundraising
Cadets and Sword Company have supported major fundraising events in the
county on behalf of ABF The Soldiers’ Charity Surrey.

Page 2 of 6

Page 4

Veterans’ Mental Heath
Virgin Care is no longer the Surrey provider for veterans mental health. The
role has been taken over by London SE Service, which has a hub based in a
Sussex Hospital. It has so far proved very hard to get an update from them –
SSAFA has also had similar experience. Karen Simmonds will contact them
again, but if there is no response she will go to NHS England. The Chairman
will provide his support if required. Action: Karen Simmonds
Debbie Hustings (CCG) would be asked if there was a military element within
the new Sustainability Transformation Plans that are being developed.
Action: Sarah Goodman/Debbie Hustings
4

11 BRIGADE UPDATE [Item 4]
Col Simon Browne stated that support for the military in Surrey has never
been stronger, and there has been a move from sympathy to empathy which
was very much welcomed. In his first few weeks in post he has noted that the
military need to give more back locally, and this is something he will raise with
the Task Force Commanders.
There are a number of moves coming up over the next few years:
 Welsh Guards are moving to Windsor in 2019 (replaced by the Irish
Guards)
 27 Regt RLC are moving to Catterick in 2021
 22 Field Hospital are moving to Nuneaton in 2020
 4 Armd Med are moving to Tidworth in 2019
Recruiting is a key issue at the moment and there is a need to move away
from the Army being the recruiter of last choice. They need support from
partners to help attract aspirational young people to join the services in a
variety of roles. Cadets are strong in Surrey and 8-20% of recruits are ex
cadets. Employer engagement is key in helping to promote the messages and
the benefits of employing Reservists.
Priorities for the coming year include youth engagement, Women 100 and
WWI 100.

5

THE FORMATION OF 4PWRR [Item 5]
Maj Matt Moore - EO gave a presentation on the formation of 4PWRR on
behalf of Lt Col Ben Baker - CO. 4PWRR is a family and a local regiment.
Board members were asked to spread the word about the new unit and share
possible recruitment opportunities. Contact details for 4PWRR - 4PWRRBHQ-XO@mod.uk
Following a request from Guildford Borough Council, 2pWRR with 4PWRR
will take part in a Freedom Parade on Armed Forces Day 2018 subject to
operational commitments.
The Chairman thanked Major Moore for his succinct and informative
presentation.

Page 3 of 6

Page 5

6

FORCES CONNECT SOUTH EAST [Item 6]
James Painter updated the group on the successful £321k to the MoD to
promote a greater understanding and awareness of the issues affecting the
Armed Forces Community within public authorities. Amanda Barnes is now in
post (2yr contract) as Project Officer and is forging connections. A training
programme is being put together for Surrey which includes face to face
training as well as elearning especially for front line satff. Further information
will follow when the programme is fully up and running in the New Year.
Amanda will be invited to the next meeting to provide an update. Action:
Jenny Harvey

7

SCMPB EXEC AND TASK GROUP UPDATE [Item 7]





Exec Priorities – A RAG status has been added to the priorities agreed at
the last meeting, and progress made was noted.
Recognise and Remember Task Group – Brig Paul Evans updated on
the work of this group which is especially important going in to 2018.
o Headley Court Farewell Parade (29 Sept 2017) was a huge
success with HRH Countess of Wessex as the Royal VIP backed
up by the Band of the Household Cavalry. It was very well
attended.
o Armed Forces Champions – Job Description has been updated
and re-circulated
o Audit of Surrey’s Armed Forces Covenant – a draft will be
complete by the end of October. Once agreed by the Chairman it
will be given to Lt-Gen Nugee by Brig Evans and the Chairman as
a good practice case study.
o Fire Service Memorial Service – A dedication event was due to
take place 30 October 2017 at Surrey Fire and Rescue Service HQ
in Reigate to commemorate 101 members of the fire service who
lost their lives in WW1 and WW2 whilst on active service with the
Military.
o VC100 Ceremony in honour of Lieutenant Harold Auten VC
DSC RD who was in command of a Q ship – HMS Stock Force
took place in Leatherhead on 7 October 2017. It was well attended
with Vice Admiral Peter Dunt CB DL presiding on behalf of the
Lord-Lieutenant. The Carpenter family were very moved.
o Surrey History Centre – the project to map war memorials across
Surrey is going well. Cadets are now actively helping with this.
Community Integration Workshop – 2 October 2017
The regular Task Group has been put on hold as it has made good
progress and it was felt that it was time to review the outstanding needs.
A workshop was held with Task Force Commanders representatives,
Welfare Officers and officers from Housing, Education, Early Years and
Health in October. Some of the issues raised included:
o Employment – there are fewer service leavers than a few years
ago. Surrey is too expensive for most of those who do leave. 95%
of service leavers find employment within six months.
o Spousal employment – is a tricky area. A skills fair is being
organised at Pirbright by 11 Brigade focussing on softer skills
based on research carried out by the Children’s Centre.

Page 4 of 6

Page 6

o

o
o
o
o
o

8

Housing – this area has been successful and any new issues are
being dealt with on a case by case basis. There is a need to
encourage those thinking of leaving service to look ahead and plan
financially. Housing may become more important in 10 years with
new pension arrangements coming in to play. A lump sum will no
longer be offered up front, which had previously often been used
as a down payment. It was felt that Rushmoor’s Policy was not
quite as good as Surrey’s. Action: Peter Bruinvels to share best
practice.
Some challenges were raised regarding spouses whose partner
had served overseas for many years when returning home eg no
credit rating.
Education – Admissions side is working very well. Attainment
discussed earlier in agenda.
Health / welfare – The bid for funding for a part time Armed
Forces Lead across all CCGs was unsuccessful. Each CCG now
has an Armed Forces Champion who meet quarterly.
Domestic Abuse and Prevent – It was agreed to link the Army in
with the Surrey DA perpetrator scheme and local Prevent
awareness training.
Debt – There is some problems with financial management among
young soldiers. It was suggested that advice given ‘behind the
wire’, but outside the army hierarchy might be better taken up.
‘Advice on the Run’ scheme is applying for Covenant funding to
support this area – through first round. Major Carol Miller
suggested Michael Cannon meet with organisations already
working within Pirbright as they have good uptake from all levels.

SURREY ARMED FORCES COVENANT CONFERENCE - 1 FEBRUARY
2018 [Item 8]
The Board was updated regarding the conference being held on 1 February
2018 at Deepcut. The overall theme for the conference of ‘Strengthening
Partnerships’ was supported. Suggestions for additional items included
sharing achievements and the role of the Armed Forces Champion. Further
suggestions should be emailed to armedforces@surreycc.gov.uk.

9

FORTHCOMING EVENTS [Item 9]
The update on the events was noted.

10

SERFCA UPDATE [Item 10]
Col Patrick Crowley praised the depth of the conversations being held in
Surrey when compared to other areas.
Recruitment of Reserves is doing well - the Navy are on course to meet their
target, and although the Army may not meet its overall target, Surrey is doing
well.
Ash Manor School with the backing of the Grenadier Guards is the first cadet
force in a state school in Surrey and is doing well. It was suggested that a
case study be developed in due course. Action: Sarah Goodman

Page 5 of 6

Page 7

11

AOB [Item 11]





12

Applications for grant funding are still being accepted. If anyone has an
idea for a project they would like funded speak with Sarah Goodman.
01483 518095.
The Task Force Commanders and Armed Forces Champions are meeting
on 16 November for their annual seminar in the Officers’ Mess, Welsh
Guard on Pirbright Camp.
SSAFA has been working with the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner to launch a project around veterans in the Criminal Justice
System. The three custody suites now ask if those in custody have
served and if they would like support from SSAFA.
The tabled update from Royal British Legion was noted (attached)

DATE OF NEXT MEETING [Item 12]
10:00 – 12:00 Wednesday 21 March 2018-Venue TBC

Page 6 of 6

Page 8

Minute Item 11
Patron Her Majesty The Queen

The Royal British Legion report for Surrey Civilian-Military Partnership
Board 11th October 2017.
After completing a home survey, a resounding issue came to light across the country within our
beneficiary group, this was social isolation. The returns of the survey showed us that this was
across all age groups and touched those serving, veterans and families who felt isolated within
their communities.
Whilst the Area operations advice and support team will assist those suffering, who are
experiencing more complex needs, with services from our case officers and outreach officers, there
still remains a high level of beneficiaries in our communities who feel lonely and isolated.
In an attempt to reach and support these people, our membership branches have taken up a
scheme named, Branch Community Support, (BCS).
BCS ensures RBL Branch members are trained to carryout home visits, hospital visits and a
telephone buddy service. All those participating in the scheme are volunteers from our
membership, who want to help and assist those beneficiaries in their local communities. This vital
service is helping to tackle the issue of social isolation, giving that much needed contact and
providing hope to many.
The following Branches in Surrey are currently signed up to deliver BCS:
Bisley
Egham Hythe
Hindhead
Leatherhead
Merstham
Banstead
West Clandon
Worcester Park
Belmont

Camberley
Epsom Ewell
Horley
Limpsfield
Morden District
Outwood
Windlesham
Carshalton

If you are aware of anyone serving, veteran or family who would benefit from the BCS service please call
our contact centre on 0808 802 8080
We have continued to engage with serving military units within Surrey and recently attended a health fair at
the Army Training Centre, Pirbright. We are supporting other units across the 11 Brigade area, with drop in
sessions for those serving and their families, offering advice and support on a range of subjects with our
specialist trained staff. These close links have lead to us funding projects in these units via our grant
scheme such as a family library at 36 Engineer Regiment. We welcome any invitation to any serving military
unit in order to give information or support, please contact myself at cspence@britishlegion.org.uk
Craig Spence
Area manager – South East
The Royal British Legion

Page 9
1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Surrey Heartlands Sustainability Transformation Plan (STP) – Commissioning Intentions
Update
Attendees at the Surrey Armed Forces Health Champions meeting in January 2018 discussed the
forthcoming STP commissioning intentions and the need to ensure that the armed forces covenant
was referenced in it. Both SCC and the CCGs are all signed up to delivering the covenant.
Commissioning intentions describe how the CCGs would like their service providers to shape their
services to meet local health and care needs as well as national priorities for the NHS.
Background
The following wording is included in the NW Surrey CCG Commissioning Intentions and sets the
background:
“MILITARY AND VETERANS
CCGs have a responsibility to commission healthcare services for Armed Forces’ families where
registered with NHS GP Practices and for service veterans when not mobilised, for emergency care
services and mental health services. The CCG is working with the award winning SCC Surrey
Civilian Military Partnership Board to take forward the Armed Forces Covenant within Surrey. The
Board has two Task Groups, one of which is Community Integration. This Task Group addresses
issues around health and welfare, employment, education and housing. Health has to date been
represented by Surrey County Council Public Health, and more recently by the NHS Partnership
Manager (Carers). NWS CCG is engaged in this work to build on plans for delivering the Military
Services Covenant. In future this will involve working within our STP footprints across the region”.
Surrey Heartlands STP
From 17 January 2018 – 18 February 2018, Surrey Heartlands conducted a consultation on the joint
plans for health and social care in Guildford and Waverley, North West Surrey, Surrey Downs and
Surrey County Council – their commissioning intentions.
Feedback from the consultation on the summary document picked up the Armed Forces Covenant
as an issue to be included.
The following wording has been put forward for inclusion in the detailed version of the Surrey
Heartlands STP Commissioning Intentions – a shortened version will be included in the summary
document:
The Armed Forces Covenant is a promise from the nation that those who serve or have served in
the Armed Forces and their families are treated fairly.
The STP will demonstrate support by:







Signing up and upholding the principles of the covenant
Registering for the defence employer recognition scheme; Bronze level which states our
intent to support defence personnel
Be an active member of the Community Integration Task Group.
Promoting Armed Forces Awareness Training
Promoting primary care registration of service leavers, reservists and those transitioning.
Support Surrey Armed Forces Carers Support Service

Surrey Heartlands are now working on the operating plan and this will include details on how they
CCGs will take the Armed Forces Covenant forward.
Debbie Hustings
Lead Armed Forces Officer for Surrey CCGs – 6 March 2018

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

ATC (Pirbirght) Pass Off Parades

Set out below are the dates of the Pass Off Parades at ATC (Pirbright) between April and
June 2018. We have been offered six spaces at up to six of the following dates.
If SCMPB Members would like to attend a parade, please email
armedforces@surreycc.gov.uk with parade dates you are available with your name and
address and we will provide your details to ATC who will issue you with a formal invitation. At
least three weeks notice is required.

Pass Off
Parades
3 x Tps
3 x Tps
3 x Tps
2 x Tps
3 x Tps
3 x Tps
3 x Tps
3 x Tps
2 x Tps
2 x Tps
2 x Tps
2 x Tps

Date
6 Apr 18
13 Apr 18
20 Apr 18
4 May 18
11 May 18
18 May 18
25 May 18
1 Jun 18
8 Jun 18
15 Jun 18
22 Jun 18
29 Jun 18

Sqn/Coy/Bty
96 Sqn RLC
28 Sqn RE
Jackson Coy AGC
108 Sqn RLC
59 Bty
Chavasse Coy RAMC
1 Sqn Royal Signals
CAEN Sqn
96 Sqn RLC
108 Sqn RLC
28 Sqn RE
Jackson Coy AGC

Page 13

Unit
1 ATR
2 ATR
1 ATR
2 ATR
1 ATR
1 ATR
2 ATR
2 ATR
1 ATR
2 ATR
2 ATR
1 ATR

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 5
Armed Forces Covenant Fund Update – March 2018
Surrey has been very successful in bidding for grants from the Ministry of Defence Armed
Forces Covenant Fund. Since the fund was first made available in 2012, Surrey has
received £1,106,509.
The Covenant Fund has four main funding themes:





Removing barriers to family life
Extra support after service for those that need help
Measures to integrate military and civilian communities and allow the Armed Forces
community to participate as citizens
Non-core healthcare services for veterans.

The administration of the Covenant Fund is in the process of being transferred from the MoD
to an Independent Charitable Trust, which will enable additional flexibility. Priorities are set
annually and we are awaiting the publication of these priorities for 2018/19, although the
MoD has confirmed that there will be a priority to support Community Integration/Delivery of
Local Services (for grants up to £20,000) as in previous years and this will open for
applications in April 2018. Updates will be posted on
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covenant-fund-guidance-on-how-to-apply
Funding Success since October 2017







Brookwood and Pirbright Childrens Centre received £19,700 to support the mental
and physical health of service children from pre-birth to 8 years old. It will support
both adults and children within the families through enhanced parenting skills.
Pirbright School received £20,000 towards construction of a new classroom where
service children and their parents can be supported in their health and wellbeing
needs.
Peter Pan Pre-School at ATC (Pirbright) received £20,000 to install a natural
woodland outdoor adventure area in the garden of the pre-school.
Surrey County Council received £147,888 on behalf of the south east region to
enhance local support for veterans (Surrey, Hampshire, Kent, East and West
Sussex, Brighton & Hove and Medway. There are approximately 42,000 veterans in
Surrey and 250,000 across the south east region. The funding is for a two year
project to:
o Carry out a needs and gap analysis looking at veteran drop in centres and
similar provision across region including hubs
o Develop a best practice guide for consistent sustainable veteran services
across region
o Roll out best practice, develop, share and promote locally tailored services
that give consistent messages – this could include links to service charities
and Regimental Associations, help accessing public services, support for
families and Reservists as well as general advice and friendship
The project will be delivered by SMPL Solutions, who currently run two drop in
centres – one in Woking and one in Aldershot. They will be working in partnership
with ASDIC – Association of ex-Service Drop-In Centres – which will ensure
consistent and high-quality delivery of services to veterans through existing and new
drop-in centres in support of the Covenant.
Unfortunately the regional bid that was submitted to help improved the outcomes of
young people from service families was unsuccessful.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Become an

Item 6

Armed Forces
Service Champion
You are invited to a brand new course designed to
enhance your understanding of the Armed Forces
and how we can support them.
The training will provide you with the skills and knowledge
to better understand military life and the needs of people who
may have left the Armed Forces, how to engage with them,
and how your service might work with others in the best interest
of serving personnel and veterans, family and carers.

To book a place on one of the dates below
email scdt.admin@nhs.net
28 March
1-5pm - County Hall, Kingston
23 May
1-5pm - Woking
21 June
1-5pm - Farnham
19 September 9.30am-1.30pm - Reigate
28 November 1-5pm - Staines
Forces Connect SE is a regional partnership,
led by Surrey County Council, which has been
successful in securing an MoD grant to fund
this training across the whole of the south
east region. Training delivered by the Armed
Forces Network. CPD accredited half day
course.
www.surreycc.gov.uk/armedforces Page 17

Forces

CONNECT
South East

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 7
DRAFT – 1 February 2018
Surrey Civilian Military Partnership Board
Armed Forces Covenant Successes 2017/18

The Surrey Civilian Military Partnership Board (SCMPB) has a high level remit to foster closer
working relationships between a number of lead agencies and military partners, and meets twice a
year in addition to hosting an annual conference. The Board considers a range of topics including
promotion of the Covenant, supporting veterans, promoting Reservists, engaging with key partners
around the issues of education, health, employment and education and commemorating and
celebrating key military events. The Board operates with the full support of 11 Infantry Brigade (SE)
which comprises Regular and Reserve units and is the regional point of contact for the Army in the
South East.
All Surrey local authorities have appointed an Armed Forces Champion and 11 Infantry Brigade has
assigned each district and borough council a Task Force Commander from an operational base
covering or adjoining Surrey. Joint working between the Task Force Commanders and the Armed
Forces Champions has developed over the last 12 months with work being progressed on a local
basis under the priorities of Community Engagement, Youth Engagement and Employer
Engagement. Examples of achievements are contained within this paper.
Set out below are some of the key successes of the Board and its partners during the 2017-18
municipal year.

Engagement


Surrey County Council has led a successful cross border partnership with Hampshire, Kent,
East and West Sussex County Councils, Brighton and Hove and Medway Councils, the Sussex,
Kent and Medway CCGs, Royal British Legion and SSAFA looking at sharing best practice and
promoting joint opportunities. This partnership has been successful in applying for a £321,300
Covenant Fund bid to help us to continue to support members of the armed forces, their families
and ex-servicemen and women by providing training opportunities for staff and partners. The
project, known as Forces Connect South East, has six key
elements:
o To strengthen the role of Elected Councillor Armed
Forces Champions
o Increase the number of Armed Forces Service
Champions within public authorities
o To develop and deliver bespoke Covenant training to
customer-facing staff.
1

Page 19

o
o
o

Promote the Covenant and educate staff within public authorities.
Support newly-recruited Service Leavers and Reservists to succeed in employment
Develop an electronic platform to share information

The project, which started in the summer, is going from strength to strength. Following the
appointment of a Programme Officer, a training package has been agreed, delivery partners
appointed and an e-learning module launched. Face to face training will begin in early spring.
The MoD are planning to roll the whole training package out nationally and have provided
additional funding to help do this.


In May 2017 Mr Peter Martin was appointed Chairman of Surrey County Council. In his first
speech as Chairman he highlighted that the Military would be one of his two priorities during his
term of office. As Chairman of the County Council, he was also appointed Chairman of the
Surrey Civilian Military Partnership Board.



The annual Surrey Armed Forces Covenant
Conference was held on 1 February 2018 at The
Princess Royal Barracks, Deepcut. It looked at the
current national and local priorities, including
Women 100 and the centenary of the First World
War. Delegates were able to explore issues further
during a series of workshops looking at accessing
the Armed Forces Covenant Fund, and the
benefits of signing up to the Ministry of Defence’s
Employer Recognition Scheme. Attached as
Annex A is the “You Said We Did” which sets out
the actions taken as a result of the last Conference.



An independent audit has been carried to look at progress against the commitments made by
Surrey County Council when it signed the Armed Forces Community Covenant in 2012. The
audit confirmed that Surrey County Council has taken their commitments seriously and that
consistent and enthusiastic progress has been maintained over the past five years. A number of
short, medium and longer term actions have been recommended which will be incorporated into
the appropriate action plans.



Surrey County Council gave a presentation to the County Council Network Localism Group to
share some of the work that has been done to implement the Covenant and to see how best
practice can continue to be shared between authorities wider than the south east region.



The sharing of best practice is a key priority of SCMPB. Two Surrey Case Studies were
published in the 2017 National Armed Forces Covenant Report. The first sets out the impact of
funding provided for classrooms and outdoor learning for Blackdown Pre-School at Princess
Royal Barracks on the Deepcut Station which provides a much needed service to the local
Service families and acts as a hub for the local community. The second sets out some of the
work that Surrey County Council has carried out to support Reservists as an Employer
Recognition Gold Award holder.

2

Page 20




@SurreyMilitary Twitter account continues to grow.
During the course of the year, a further £379,748 of Armed Forces Covenant Grants were
brought into Surrey through successful projects. This brings the total awarded to date years
since the new 2012 to £938,621. (Awaiting announcement at end of March for further successful
bids for this year.)



Positive relationships between the local authorities and
their local Army links (Task Force Commanders) have
continued to enhance over the past year. A successful
training/networking event was held at the Welsh Guard’s
Officers Mess where a number of examples of best
practice were shared, following by a Team Bonding
Command Tasks exercise which saw delegates compete
in teams as ‘countries’ against each other in a battle for
security and key resources.



Surrey County Council has developed an excellent
relationship with 256 (City of London) Field Hospital, which
although part of London District in terms of Army structure,
is geographically located a few hundred metres from
County Hall. This relationship has resulted in soldiers in
uniform being able to attend appropriate ceremonial events
at County Hall. Additionally, as a result of the relationship,
the Field Hospital has made good links with The Royal
Surrey County Hospital, Guildford.



Surrey Police and the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner signed the Armed Forces Covenant with
the Deputy Commander of 11 Infantry Brigade and the
Commanding Officer of DMRC Headley Court. Frimley
Park Hospital and Surrey Association of Local Councils
also signed the Covenant during the year.

Education and Young People


The new Combined Cadet Force (CCF) established under the Cadet Expansion Scheme at Ash
Manor School in partnership with the Grenadier Guards is now up and running. This is the first
state school CCF in Surrey established under the scheme.



Task Force Commanders have continued to carry out Annual Cadet Inspections within their
linked authorities in Surrey.



A cross border bid has been submitted to the Covenant Fund to support improving the outcomes
of young people from Service families by providing resources and training to build resilience and
wellbeing. If successful, the grant will fund a team to research, design, pilot and evaluate the
approach and roll it out in the region.
3

Page 21



Primary schools in the catchment of ATC (Pirbright) have come together to consider bids to the
Covenant Fund to support service children and their integration within the wider community. A
number of successful bids have been received covering pastoral support, reading support,
parenting support and a capital project to create an additional room where service children can
be supported and families can come together.



The regular newsletter to schools with service children setting out advice and guidance
continues to be produced.



Woking BC working with 11 Brigade and Institute of Statecraft via a Shared Outcomes
programme helped to engage with three local schools, Winston Churchill, Woking High and
Bishop David Brown School to run a Challenge Week at Longmoor Training Camp, Longmoor
for 14-16year olds during Autumn half term. Twelve students participated and the programme is
likely to be rolled out Surrey wide in future.

Employment


Newly formed on the 1 September 2017, 4th Battalion Princess of Wales’s Royal Regiment
currently Headquartered in Crawley, will move to Redhill in April 2018. Recruiting numbers are
very high already, especially at the newly re-badged Farnham Reserve Centre.



A number of veterans and Reservists on Surrey Fire and
Rescue’s Guildford Green Watch worked with Forces Welfare TV
create video clip shared via social media on the benefits of
employing members of the Armed Forces Community, highlighting
some of the transferrable skills they bring to Surrey. This
received over 30,000 views on Forces Welfare Facebook, and
was shared widely through Surrey’s social media.



to

Surrey County Council has developed a new Strategic Armed
Forces Employment Plan and Working Group to ensure the
Council has an evidence, programmed and organised approach to current and ex-armed forces,
in relation to employment and has resources committed to its delivery. The plan includes the
following key activities:
o Advertising jobs on Career Transition
Partnership website - across different grades
and careers
o Promoting Gold Employer on all job adverts –
every advert now includes the logo, as well
as the disability confident and Business
Disability Forum logos.
o Supporting Reservists and ex-service personnel with new policy, guidance and online
staff network – modelling best practice of welfare and support and time required to
undertake training and development. Using our new Jive space to create a private group
for staff to share experiences and provide peer support.

4

Page 22

o

Better monitoring and progress reporting – creating new recruitment and employee
codes and monitoring progress of applicants and staff from a military background.



As an Employer Recognition Scheme Gold Award
winner, Surrey County Council is a strong advocate of
the Armed Forces Community, employing over 25
Reservists and many Veterans. It recognises the huge
value and contribution that staff who are Reservists and
Veterans make to the Council. The Council held a thank
you reception for its Reservists (and those working in
the district and borough councils and Surrey Police),
which it used to explore further ways in which it could
support them. It also provided an opportunity to meet
Reservist colleagues.



Building on the Gold Employer Recognition Award, Surrey County Council is now a member of
the Gold Alumni Group which aims to identify and share best practice and promoting the
benefits of the Gold award. The group is chaired by WS Atkins working in partnership with LtGen Richard Nugee as a sounding board for new initiatives from the MoD.



Each year up to 10 Surrey County Council and Woking Borough Council employees attend the
Sandhurst Leadership Challenge course. This is of great benefit to attendees:
“The Sandhurst Leadership Challenge was great fun
and a really good opportunity to think about leadership
in a different environment. Undertaking a range of
different challenges with people you have never met
before, was a great test of teamwork and leadership
skills and in the debrief after each challenge it was
interesting to see what had worked well or more often
where we had gone wrong! I’ve been able to use lots of
learning from the day to think about how I can work
more effectively on collaborative projects with colleagues from across the council and in partner
organisations.”
“Attending the Sandhurst Leadership Day has had a big impact on me: I constantly find myself
reflecting on my approach to team work and leadership, using my experiences from the day, and
learning from the other participants”.



During January 2018, Surrey County Council undertook an internal survey asking colleagues
whether they have any connection to the armed forces – whether a close family member or
partner who was, or is in the armed forces, they were in the armed forces or a Reservist. The
results of the survey will be used to keep in touch and further target support available. In March
2018 Woking Borough Council will undertake the same survey.



Epsom and Ewell Borough Council has introduced guaranteed interviews for ex-service
personnel who meet the minimum criteria.
5

Page 23



All recruitment application forms received by Woking Borough Council are monitored at regular
intervals and Woking has pledged at least an interview to anyone with links to the Armed Forces
including spouses, subject to meeting the minimum requirements for the post.



Surrey County Council and Woking Borough Council continue to be active members of the
Regional Employer Engagement Group hosted by SE RFCA which looks at ways of promoting
the benefits of the relationship between defence and business.



Business Breakfasts continue to be a key way of promoting the benefits of a good relationship
between defence and businesses. Woking Means business is a great example of such a
breakfast briefing in October 2017 held at the HG Wells Conference Centre, where Defence
Relation Management attended to promote key messages first hand.



A number of Surrey authorities are promoting either Heroes Welcome or the Defence Discount
Scheme with local businesses as another way to support the Armed Forces Community in
Surrey.

Housing


Housing liaison across Surrey is working well, and to date there are no strategic housing issues
outstanding. This has been achieved through having a nominated Housing Lead on behalf of all
the local authorities in Surrey, based at Woking Borough Council.



Woking Borough Council monitors its housing allocation on a quarterly basis for applicants with
links to the Armed Forces.

Health, Wellbeing and Welfare


The Surrey based CCGs have been working with the Surrey Civilian Military Partnership Board
to take forward the Armed Forces Covenant within Surrey. The Community Task Integration
Group hosts the newly formed Surrey Armed Forces Health Champions Group whose purpose
is to ensure that health delivers on the principles of the armed forces covenant. This has now
expanded to include working across STP footprints including Surrey Heartlands which
represents 75% of the Surrey population. New commissioning intentions will be published in
April 2018 and these will include specific details of how they will demonstrate support to the
armed forces covenant.



Building on the commitment to the Surrey Carers Memorandum of Understanding ‘Together for
Carers’ our Armed Forces Carers Support service hosted by Action for Carers Surrey has
supported over 80 families including 22 young carers during the past year.
A new ‘whole family’ coordinator for the service has been recruited which has allowed us to
expanded our reach into the community and offer a wider range of services including manual
handling, GP Carer Break payments via DMS and Healios which is an online family intervention
6

Page 24

service delivering high quality evidence-based psychological intervention and skill-building to
Carers of people with mental health problems including PTSD.
We continue to build on our resources including developing a staff Armed Forces Training
resource for professionals who work with carers, some new armed forces specific carer
information leaflets and carer webpages and we are delighted to announce that we have
received funding from NHS England to produce an animated armed forces young carers film
resource to be launched April 2018.


A successful workshop with key service mangers from Health, Education and Housing was held
with 11 Brigade and Unit Welfare Officers to review current actions to implement the covenant
and focus work going forward. This work will be built into the SCMPB action plan going forward.



A cross border Covenant Fund bid has been submitted to the Ministry of Defence to carry out a
needs/gap analysis of veteran hubs and drop-ins across the South East region, develop a dropin toolkit and promote additional hubs, where appropriate across the region. The outcome of the
application will be known by the end of the financial year.

Recognition and Remembrance


Surrey Fire and Rescue Service held a memorial
dedication service to the 101 Surrey firefighters who lost
their lives in WWI and WWII. Across Surrey there was no
single place to remember and reflect. The Cricket
Pavilion at Wray Park, which was in need of repair, was
identified as an appropriate site with a vision for it to be
completed by 2018 at the end of the 100 years of
remembrance period. Over the past 4 years, using the
skills of the firefighters, the building was restored to its
former glory and a cairn raised in memory of those fallen.
It is now a poignant place which connects those who
served in the Brigade and went to war and subsequently
died defending our freedoms, including the boys who
were schooled at Wray Park and did the same before
them. Some of these people would have used the
pavilion and played cricket on these green and pleasant
lands in the heart of Surrey and although none of those
named on both memorials ever came home, there will
always be a connection for them from whatever corner of
the world they now lay back to us. We will remember and honour them. This was a very high
profile event attended by the Lord-Lieutenant, the High Sheriff and the Chairman of Surrey
County Council.



DMRC Headley Court is due to move to the Midlands in summer 2018. On 29 September 2017,
Headley Court carried out a farewell march through Dorking town centre with the Band of the
Household Cavalry. They were inspected by HRH Sophie Countess of Wessex.

7

Page 25




Plans for First World War 100 commemorations are being co-ordinated in Surrey through the
Recognise and Remember Task Group of the Surrey Civilian Military Partnership Board.
During the year Army Training
Centre (ATC) (Pirbright) was given
the freedom of both Woking and
Guildford Borough Council areas.
ATC (Pirbright) exercised their right
to march through Woking in April
and through Guildford in June at
two spectacular events which were
very well attended by members of
the public.



On Friday 10 November, County Hall was
lit up with a spectacular display of falling
poppies as part of the County Council’s
Remembrance Day commemorations to
pay respect to generations of Service men
and women who have lost their lives in the
line of duty. The event, which was
supported by the Royal British Legion, also
saw the unveiling of two Silent Soldiers
outside the main entrance of County Hall.



Surrey Heritage Services has been working with the Armed Forces Champions and the Cadets
locally to document all war memorials in Surrey. This has been a very successful educational
project with Cadets learning a considerable about many of Surrey’ service men and women who
lost their lives in both world wars. This has helped to chronicle Surrey’s active participation in
both wars.



The annual Choral Matins at Guildford Cathedral took place at the start of Armed Forces Week
with the Lord-Lieutenant raising the Armed Forces Flag. There then followed a parade and full
inspection of the tri-service cadets, watched by the High Sheriff and all Surrey’s Mayors.



All Surrey District and Borough Councils participated in Armed Forces Week by raising the Flag
and some, including Woking, held a parade in the Town Centre.



Woking Borough Council, 11 Brigade, 27 Regiment
RLC, Woking High School and Horsell Common
Preservation Society held an inaugural
commemoration service at the Muslim Burial
Ground Peace Garden on 16th July 2016 attended
by over 250 people. The event was attended by
Sophena Chisembele the daughter of the last
soldier buried at the Muslim Burial Ground.

Contact armedforces@surreycc.gov.uk to add further
examples or for more information.
8

Page 26

Annex A

“You Said We Did” from Surrey Armed Forces Covenant Conference – November 2016
A number of actions were identified at the Armed Forces Covenant Conference held in November
2016 during the workshop sessions, plenary sessions and on the feedback forms. Set out below is a
summary of the actions taken over the last 12 months to address these issues.
You Said
Veterans
Need help identifying veterans
and link to appropriate services

Promote existing organisations
providing support for spouses via
social media, local newsletters
etc.

More support for veterans in
communities is required. Would
a mapping exercise asking
organisations and veterans about
needs would be useful.
Most young veterans are looking
for signposting and help with
integration – CV writing;

We Did


The six Surrey Clinical Commissioning Groups are in the
process of carrying out a survey on veterans registered
with all GP practices in Surrey. The results of this will be
available in spring 2018.
 The South East Veterans Pensions Advisory Committee
has accurate figures on those obtaining war pensions – this
can be found via the following link:
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/location-ofarmed-forces-pension-and-compensation-recipients-2017
 The Surrey Armed Forces Calendar and @SurreyMilitary
Twitter account has been actively promoting veteran drop
in sessions across the county
 The Forces Connect South East Project is providing
training for frontline staff to enable then to help identify and
signpost veterans to sources of support.
 The new Covenant funded Veterans’ Gateway was
launched in June 2017 and provides a single point of
contact for veterans requiring advice and support –
www.veteransgateway.org.uk
The three Family Federations provide extensive support, as do
the Welfare Offices and local organisations including the
Children’s Centres supporting families on camp. In addition, a
number of the grant applications have a positive impact
supporting spouses such as play schemes and parenting
support.
As mentioned above Forces Connect South East will support
this action, as will drop in centres and the advice provided by
relevant contacts centres. SSAFA and RBL have good
knowledge of local and changing needs in Surrey.

Websites contain signposting as do the one stop leaflets that a
number of district and borough councils have produced.
The Veterans Gateway is another source of support.
9

Page 27

accessing health care
Poor health can stop people
being able to physically access
support group meetings.

The Veterans’ Gateway, SSAFA and the Royal British Legion
are all contactable for support via the telephone or online.

Loneliness is increasing, and this
can make people more
susceptible to scams. A third of
people over 75 are lonely. Could
we run a publicity campaign on
befriending or link into current
befriending services?

The RBL has recently carried out a home survey which
highlighted the issue of social isolation across all age groups.
As a result they now offer Branch Community Support which
trains branch members to carry out home visits, hospital visits
and a telephone buddy service. The following Branches in
Surrey are currently signed up to deliver BCS:

Pressure on care homes. Military
charities can help with top-up
fees – is this known?

The Forces Connect South East training provides a session on
the role of service charities and what support and funding they
can offer.

Children
Ensuring Service Children don’t
leave primary education with
gaps in knowledge. Could
Service Premium be used to
assess academic baseline for
each child at point of entry for
targeted support?
Wider promotion and awareness
of support for military young
carers

Numbers of service children in
and out of Surrey schools during
the year
Lack of transport from army
quarters to schools
Winchester University work –
follow research of service
children entering higher
education. Promote role models
and appropriate support
Holistic thinking to support
children of absent parents, eg
service children, working
overseas etc.
Engage with Headteachers to get
their view
Contact with families during long

Bisley
Egham Hythe
Hindhead
Leatherhead
Merstham
Banstead
West Clandon

Camberley
Epsom & Ewell
Horley
Limpsfield
Morden District
Outwood
Windlesham

The Service Pupil Premium is for pastoral support rather than
academic support. Through the schools termly newsletter,
best practice for the use of the Service Pupil Premium is
promoted.
An application has been submitted to the MoD looking at the
support given to service children – the outcome will be known
in spring 2018.
Action for Carers Surrey has employed a new carers’ support
worker who is actively working with both adult and children
carers and promoting services widely.
The Forces Connect South East training has a focus on armed
forces carers.
The number of service children in schools is monitored
annually. Movement is monitored by the schools and by
admissions.
Surrey County Council working with the Army Families
Federation has developed some guidance
The Surrey education military lead is linked into the university
of Winchester to ensure best practice and latest research is
known.
Work is ongoing to look at the possibility of a future LordLieutenant Cadet being a Service child.
An application has been submitted to the MoD Covenant Fund
which looks at increasing the resilience of service children,
particularly for those schools where there are only a few
service children.
Meetings held with Bisley, Brookwood and Pirbright schools to
look at possible grant applications to the Covenant Fund.
A regular newsletter is sent out to schools with service children
10

Page 28

deployments (especially RN).
How could schools help? Take
account of time zones so evening
contact not always possible.
Children need extra support
when a parent is deployed, do
they get support funding?
Minister promised to look into this
last year – has he done this?
Evidence that the “buddy” system
works well for children newly
arriving in a school – is this
promoted in Surrey schools?
Possibility of encouraging a
Governor to take a lead in military
children on each governing body.
Alternatively, to use the Service
Premium to increase the pay
point of a staff member to focus
on military children (or where
sufficient funding available to
create a whole post).
Spouses
Mystery shopping in Job Centre
as a Military wife to see how
treated
Stress management techniques
and emotional wellbeing for
spouses during deployment
Cost of childcare
Access to facilities if spouse does
not drive
Help military spouses to
understand the legislation around
their civilian roles – that they
can’t be sacked for being
pregnant was an example given.
Need tailored careers guidance
for military spouses at the
beginning of a relationship
Health
Access to dentistry and
orthodontist and how to keep
place on waiting list if move

highlighting ways to support the children and best practice.

Pastoral support is provided by the school and the Welfare
Office.
We have not had feedback from the Minister.

We are aware of at least one Surrey school that uses
buddying. We are looking to promote a case study on this
which will be promoted as best practice.
All schools are encouraged to have a Governor, who
specifically supports the needs of vulnerable groups, including
service children. This has been promoted through governor
briefings and newsletters
This is also done in Hampshire so we will look to see if there is
any best practice we can share.

Not progressed to date

Support is provided by the Unit Welfare Offices and is also
available via the Family Federations
This is a national issue
Not within the remit of SCMPB
Not within the remit of SCMPB

Not within the remit of SCMPB
RBL Lifeworks have offered free 3 day employment courses in
Pirbright and Sandhurst for service spouses returning to work
or looking for a career change.
Provision is the same as for civilians. If the Armed Forces
family move and they are on the waiting list, then they will need
to find a new dentist/orthodontist in their new area and join that
waiting list. If they are in the middle of treatment and eligible
under the NHS then they will need to show that they are
eligible and they will be treated as part of the NHS continuity of
care. They will need to work with the existing provider to get
11

Page 29

GPs need more training/guidance
on services available to veterans.
An audit of GPs to ask how many
veterans are registered would be
useful
Veterans with mental health
issues are entitled to 12 months
post service support – but how do
you access this if you return to a
community not near to a base?
(services can be outsourced and
not necessarily military)
Housing
Housing for spouses if they spilt
up and lack of local connection

their records transferred. There is no special provision for
Armed Forces families.
GP practices are in the process of carrying out an audit of
veterans that are registered with them. Once the results have
been compiled, they will be rolled out with appropriate training
resources.

The London Veterans’ Service has the new contract for
provision of mental health services for veterans in Surrey. This
is a new contract and once contacts have been established,
they will be asked for a response.

This has been considered by the Surrey Housing Officers
Group and spouses will be considered on a case by case
basis.

Integration
More integration on bases?
Shared facilities etc.?

Some facilities are already shared, for example the Peter Pan
Nursery. Surrey has been very successful in applying for
grants from the Covenant Fund that promote integration
between the civilian and military communities.
Encourage service families to
The Welfare Offices and the local schools try to promote
opportunities for service families to become involved in school
take part in general community
life, either through the PTA, by becoming a Governor or joining
life. Encourage military families
the committee of a local pre-school. To date up take has been
to consider taking up volunteering
very low.
roles – Surrey Youth focus
always looking for volunteers.

Reservists
Wider awareness of the role of
Reservists within organisations –
especially at line management
level
Transition
Need for effective exit interviews
and appropriate transition
workshops
Signposting should begin before
resettlement takes place with
information on local authorities
and health care providers;
Include families in transition
sessions not just serving
personnel.

Surrey County Council is in the process of updating its
Reservist Policy and will promote it as best practice in due
course.
Within Surrey SERFCA is doing a great job at promoting the
Employer Recognition Scheme and the benefits of Reservists.
This is currently provided by the Military and the Career
Transition Partnership who provide support to those leaving
the services.
This currently takes place and service leavers are provided
with a leavers pack.

There is currently no facility to do this.

12

Page 30

Employment
Consider guaranteed interviews
for spouses and ex-military if they
meet the minimum criteria

This has been actively considered by a number of Surrey local
authorities, with a few giving guaranteed interviews.

Help employers to understand
the need for flexibility around
annual leave (to support the
movement of the Forces and the
inability for families to plan for
this). The example given of some
companies/NHS services
requiring 80% of leave to be
committed in the year beforehand

Need to work with SERFCA to help promote this message
when working with local employers

How can roles be transferrable
within larger businesses (Tesco’s
to Tesco’s for example) – could
this be widened?

Not progressed to date

Due to the complications
regarding getting mainstream
jobs for those families who
“followed the drum”, many
spouses have set up selfemployment businesses – but
their business needs to be
located somewhere – there were
significant legal issues when
moving, could this be
streamlined? Be easier to reregister addresses for those
businesses if connected to a
Barracks?

National issue

Could there be a “Carers
Passport” for military spouses as
there is in the Civil Service that
outlines the benefits of employing
the individual and notes their
caring responsibilities, so that
changing line managers
understand the individual.

There are now Carers Passports in five Surrey hospitals and
they are being looked at within Surrey and Borders Mental
Health Trust. Now starting to look at community providers.
Virgin Care launched theirs in November 2017 and CSH
Surrey and First Community are both looking at it. For further
information on Carers Passport – www.carerpassport.uk

13

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Surrey County Council
Armed Forces Covenant

Audit of Progress
January 2018
Independent Audit by Brigadier Paul Evans OBE DL

1

Page 33

Contents
1. Introduction ........................................................................................................ 4
2. Armed Forces Covenant ................................................................................... 4
2.1 Key Principles ................................................................................................. 4
2.2 Audit Comments ............................................................................................. 4
2.3 Proposed Action ............................................................................................. 5
3. SCC Armed Forces Community Covenant ...................................................... 5
3.1 Armed Forces Community Covenant ............................................................ 5
3.2 SCC Commitments ......................................................................................... 5
3.3 Audit Comments ............................................................................................. 6
3.4 Proposed Action ............................................................................................. 6
4. SCC Armed Forces Covenant - Governance ................................................... 6
4.1 Surrey Civilian Military Partnership Board ................................................... 6
4.2 Audit Comments ............................................................................................. 7
4.3 Proposed Actions ........................................................................................... 8
4.4 SCMPB Task Groups ...................................................................................... 9
4.5 Audit Comments ............................................................................................. 9
4.6 Proposed Actions ......................................................................................... 10
4.7 Armed Forces Champions ........................................................................... 10
4.8 Audit Comments ........................................................................................... 10
4.9 Proposed Actions ......................................................................................... 11
4.10 Transformation within SCC ........................................................................ 11
4.11 Audit Comments ......................................................................................... 12
4.12 Proposed Actions ....................................................................................... 13
5. SCC Leadership Role ...................................................................................... 13
5.1 Boroughs and Districts ................................................................................ 13
5.2 Audit Comments ........................................................................................... 13
5.3 Proposed Actions ......................................................................................... 13
5.4 Forces Connect South East ......................................................................... 13
5.5 Audit Comments ........................................................................................... 14
5.6 Proposed Actions ......................................................................................... 14
6. Engagement and Communications ................................................................ 15
6.1 Engagement .................................................................................................. 15
6.2 Audit Comments ........................................................................................... 15
6.3 Proposed Actions ......................................................................................... 15

2

Page 34

6.4 Communications ........................................................................................... 16
6.5 Audit Comments ........................................................................................... 16
6.6 Proposed Actions ......................................................................................... 17
6.7 Contact Centre .............................................................................................. 17
6.8 Audit Comments ........................................................................................... 17
6.9 Proposed Actions ......................................................................................... 17
7. Employer Recognition Scheme ...................................................................... 18
7.1 Gold Award .................................................................................................... 18
7.2 Audit Comments ........................................................................................... 18
7.3 Proposed Actions ......................................................................................... 19
8. Concluding Comments ................................................................................... 19
9. Recommended Actions ................................................................................... 20
9.1 Short Term ..................................................................................................... 20
9.2 Medium Term................................................................................................. 21
9.3 Long Term ..................................................................................................... 22

3

Page 35

1. Introduction
1.1 Introduction
The Chairman of Surrey County Council (SCC) has agreed that it would now be an
appropriate time to conduct an initial audit of the commitments made by SCC when
signing the Armed Forces Community Covenant in 20121. The Chairman considers it
important to confirm the extent of the progress made to date and the actions
necessary to demonstrate continuous development and improvement. The Chairman
remains determined to keep the Armed Forces Covenant current by focusing on the
future needs of Surrey based Service personnel, both Regular and Reserve, their
families and veterans as well as Cadets. He has further stipulated that the audit,
which should as far as possible be evidence based, should also review the structure
of the organisations established under the Surrey Civilian Military Partnership Board
(SCMPB) to meet SCC current and future Covenant obligations.
It is planned that, following this initial audit, future audits will be conducted with more
rigour. There is also an expectation that this and certainly future audit reports will be
shared with the MoD, 11 Infantry Brigade and Boroughs and Districts, particularly
Armed Forces Champions.

2. Armed Forces Covenant
2.1 Key Principles
The Armed Forces Covenant includes two key principles2:


No member of the Armed Forces should face disadvantage in the provision of
public and commercial services compared to any other citizen.



In some circumstances special treatment for the Armed Forces may be
appropriate, especially for the injured or bereaved.

2.2 Audit Comments
SCC has acknowledged that, where it is appropriate and justified, members of
the Armed Forces Community may be considered to receive special treatment for
example in supporting job applications from ex-service personnel. SCC recognise
that former Service personnel have talents, knowledge and experience that are
likely to be beneficial to the Council, particularly in terms of their communication
skills, motivation, excellent problem solving abilities, team working and leadership
abilities. More importantly, SCC has worked hard to ensure that all members of
the Armed Forces community are not disadvantaged in any way and continue to
1
2

SCC Armed Forces Community Covenant – Signed document
Armed Forces Covenant

4

Page 36

strive to ensure that they are made aware of what public and commercial
services are available to them and how best they can be accessed. SCC has also
offered training to support partners of Service personnel, with help to build their
confidence, their experience in CV writing and the job application process. It is
clear that SCC is now displaying a consistent approach to ensuring that the
Armed Forces Covenant key principles underpin all the work they do in support of
the Armed Forces community.
2.3 Proposed Action
From time to time, it would be both appropriate and beneficial to remind staff, who
interface and engage with the Military community, of the positive approach the
Council is taking and the continuing importance of delivering the Armed Forces
Covenant key principles.

3. SCC Armed Forces Community Covenant
3.1 Armed Forces Community Covenant
Following the launch of the Armed Forces Covenant, which set the moral obligation
between the Nation, the Government and the Armed Forces, the MoD introduced a
Corporate Covenant designed to ensure that the Armed Forces community face no
disadvantage in their engagement with business. At the same time the MoD
introduced a Community Covenant to empower local authorities and communities to
support members of the Armed Forces community and improve the public’s
understanding of issues that affect them. Following a review of the brand, the MoD
decided to remove the distinction between the three elements of the Covenant in
favour of a single brand, Armed Forces Covenant.
3.2 SCC Commitments
When signing the then Armed Forces Community Covenant, SCC committed the
Council to a number of specific commitments:


To deliver the welfare needs of Armed Forces personnel, veterans and their
families within Surrey.



To consider the needs of the Armed Forces community in future service and
infrastructure planning.



To provide leadership within the County to ensure that Reservists employees
are valued for their contribution.



To provide and publicise effective customer services.



To provide support to activities that recognise and remember the role and
contribution of the Armed Forces and veterans.

5

Page 37

3.3 Audit Comments
These commitments, highlighted within a 2016 Resident Experience Board Report 3
remain the main focus of effort for SCC, particularly for the two SCMPB Task Groups
and subsequently the Forces Connect South East (SE) work. It will remain important
to monitor success on a continuous basis, share appropriate best practice and
ensure that support for the Armed Forces community is embedded within the DNA of
the Council and, by example and leadership, within the Surrey Boroughs and
Districts. It is also recognised that the annual Surrey Armed Forces Covenant
Conference and annual successes document are both excellent ways to report on
progress made during the previous year. This is good practice which should continue
in the future.
3.4 Proposed Action
SCC and SCMPB must ensure that the future audit process is designed not only to
record progress against commitments made but also to ensure that there is
continuous improvement, to a point where additional commitments may be included,
thus placing emphasis on what SCC is ‘good for’ as well as what it is currently and
previously ‘good at’.

4. SCC Armed Forces Covenant - Governance
4.1 Surrey Civilian Military Partnership Board
SCC recognised that, in order to deliver the Armed Forces Covenant and specifically
their commitments, responsibilities and obligations, they had to establish strong and
effective governance arrangements. Their immediate priority was to form a Surrey
Civilian Military Partnership Board (SCMPB) chaired by the Chairman of the County
Council comprising experienced representatives from the military and civilian
communities, including the Police, Fire and Rescue Service, business and the main
Service charities. Surrey County Council’s Community Partnership and Safety
Service support the work of SCMPB and lead the implementation of the Covenant
throughout the Council. This team has been awarded a Customer Service
Excellence accreditation, which is a nationally recognised award for customer
engagement excellence.
A SCMPB Executive Committee was also established, focused on specific issues
and in particular the review of applications for grants from within the County for the
MoD’s Armed Forces Covenant Fund programme. SCC remain a strong supporter of
this funded programme and, indeed, has positively encouraged organisations that
have, or our planning to develop, effective interface relationships between the
military and civilian communities to make an application. This approach has resulted
in Surrey based projects gaining significant success both in terms of the quantity and
value of awards. SCMPB Executive has clearly taken their responsibilities very
3

SCC Resident Experience Board Report – May 2016

6

Page 38

seriously, to a point where only high quality and fully costed applications, that meet
the awards criteria, receive the highest recommendation to the MoD. To date and
since the start of the initiative in 2012, the MoD has funded Surrey based projects to
a total value of £918,621. There are further applications currently in the process of
being prepared.
The current SCC Armed Forces Covenant structure is shown diagrammatically
below:

4.2 Audit Comments
The Community Partnership and Safety Service, comprising experienced staff, have
worked with commendable enthusiasm and, quite rightly, deserve high praise for
their efforts on behalf of SCC, particularly in terms of maintaining a consistent
approach over the years. By way of example, they played a pivotal role in the
planning and preparation of the recently successful Memorial Dedication for the 100
Surrey Fire Fighters who lost their lives in WW1 and WWII.
To highlight the value of the SCMPB Executive, their meeting held on 13 July 20174
included an assessment of Armed Forces Covenant Fund applications to the MoD, a
review of the SCMPB governance structure, an update on the progress of the SCC
Armed Forces Covenant audit and a progress report following the launch of the
Forces Connect SE programme.
Each year, SCMPB develops and publishes a list5 of their Armed Forces Covenant
priorities for the coming twelve months. The list, which is more than just an amalgam
of the Task Group Action Plans, includes measures to deliver key actions, deadlines
4
5

SCMPB Executive – 13 July 2017 – Briefing Pack
SCMPB Executive Priorities for 2017-2018

7

Page 39

and a progress status. The actions for the period 2017 – 2018 are grouped under
key headings:


Engagement – To enable effective support and engagement between the
Armed Forces and civilian communities, particularly through local authorities,
in order to promote a greater understanding and awareness of issues
affecting the Armed Forces community.



SCC – To ensure effective and consistent delivery of the Covenant within the
Council.



Reservists and Former Service Personnel – To promote the benefits of
employing Reservists and former Service personnel in Surrey.



Veterans – to support veterans in Surrey and ensure that links to the Service
charities as appropriate.



Youth – Support South East Reserve Forces and Cadets Association
(SERFCA) and 11 Brigade priorities relating to young people, particularly
Cadets and to promote Cadet Adult volunteering initiatives.



Governance – Ensure an effective operation and delivery structure to
implement the Covenant.



Recognition and Remembrance – Commemorate and celebrate key military
events.

In addition, SCC have produced and published a comprehensive list6 of activities
undertaken in 2016 – 2017 which serves to demonstrate the Council’s continued
commitment to the Covenant and their determination to maintain momentum by
ensuring that support to the Armed Forces community remains at the forefront of the
services they deliver.
The absolutely critical role and commitment of the SCC Chairman, as the SCMPB
Chairman, should not be underestimated, particularly in terms of the Council’s ability
to deliver their Covenant commitments. Successive Chairman have played a critical
role in developing the reputation SCC currently enjoys with local Military
commanders, SERFCA and the MoD.
4.3 Proposed Actions
Greater effort could be made to promote the Council’s Armed Forces Covenant
priorities for the coming years not only to SCC staff and the Boroughs and Districts
but also to the Military, including the chain of command and particularly the Task
Force Commanders. Members of the SCMPB Executive must retain a clear
understanding that limited MoD funds will only be committed to the most deserving
projects that have clear, measurable and delivery outcomes. The value of the
6

SCC – Summary of Activities 2016-2017

8

Page 40

SCMPB Executive’s comments on proposed bids to the Covenant Fund is
recognised and consideration should be given to encouraging the MoD to ensure
that applicants speak to the local Civilian Military Partnership Board prior to them
completing a submission.

4.4 SCMPB Task Groups
Tasks Groups were created to deliver to the Armed Forces community the following
fundamental facilities enjoyed by others within the County:


Healthcare – The same standard of and access to healthcare.



Education – Children should have the same standard of and access to
education, including early year’s services.



Housing – The same access to social housing and other housing schemes
and not be disadvantaged in that respect by the requirement for mobility whilst
in Service.



Benefits –The same access to benefits.



Family Life – To sustain family life, family members should have the same
access to childcare, training and employment opportunities.



Transition – Support should be available for all Service personal in order to
assist their transition from Service to civilian life.



Support After Service – In accessing services, former members of the Armed
Forces should expect the same level of support.



Recognition – Appropriate recognition for the unique Service which they have
given and continues to give to the Nation and the unlimited liability which
Service personnel assume.



Participation as Citizens – Able to participate as citizens.

4.5 Audit Comments
Minutes of the regular meetings of the Task Groups7 confirm the effort that has been
made to focus attention on key programmes that have the best possible prospect of
being delivered. The Task Groups’ work is guided by their Action Plans8 which are
reviewed regularly to ensure that their efforts remain relevant and that progress is
maintained. The Task Group Chairman continue to report progress at all SCMPB
and SCMPB Executive meetings.

7
8

Current SCMPB Task Group Minutes
Current SCMPB Task Group Action Plans

9

Page 41

4.6 Proposed Actions
Given that the Task Groups have been a demonstrable success, SCMPB could now
consider amending the structure with a possible outcome being a reduction to a
single Task Group, to better reflect a natural change of emphasis and success over
the past five years. Such a move should be seen as a clear manifestation of real
progress. Thought should be given to the possibility of subsuming the Task Groups
responsibilities within a revamped SCMPB Executive, with appropriately revised
Terms of Reference.
4.7 Armed Forces Champions
SCC appreciated very quickly that, for Armed Forces matters, there was a
compelling need to develop resilient relationships with the 11 Boroughs and Districts
of Surrey not only to promote effective communications but also to identify and
resolve issues at a local level. The County Council and all Boroughs and Districts
agreed to introduce Armed Forces Champions, who were already elected
Councillors in various roles including Chairman, Executive Member, Leader and
those with a keen interest in the Armed Forces. Their role, which was originally to
raise the profile and needs of the Armed Forces community within the Council and
local authority area, has matured considerably over time to a point where there is
now a complete understanding that the Champions play a pivotal role within their
communities and in maintaining the strongest possible links with the newly created
Task Force Commanders who have been given specific community integration
responsibilities by their military chain of command. Many of the Boroughs and
Districts have established Armed Forces Panels to support the work of the Armed
Forces Champions and to monitor the implementation of Covenant commitments
locally. A job description9 for the Armed Forces Champions, which has been
developed within the SCMPB Recognise and Remember Task Group and approved
by SCMPB, has been recognised as best practice by the MoD and shared with other
Counties. The job description has been updated recently to reflect slight changes in
the role of the Champions.
4.8 Audit Comments
Establishing Armed Forces Champions and Task Force Commanders has, without
doubt, improved civilian and military awareness and integration. This is evidenced in
the military support to civic events throughout the County, for example
Remembrance Day parades and Armed Forces Flag raising events. There is also
clear evidence of the enthusiasm of Boroughs and Districts to recognise the
contribution the military are making within the community, for example Freedom
Parades in Woking and Guildford an the successful Service and Parade hosted by
Mole Valley to bid farewell to DMRC Headley Court.
To enhance links between the Armed Forces Champions and the Task Force
Commanders, SCMPB agreed to host regular meetings with an agenda focused on
strengthening relationships and communication, charting success, identifying areas
where improvements can be achieved and agreeing priorities and actions for the

9

Surrey Armed Forces Champions – Job Description

10

Page 42

coming months. SCMPB produced conference notes, including a list of key points10
made during table discussions. The list is reviewed at subsequent conferences to
confirm the level of progress made against the issues discussed.
4.9 Proposed Actions
Following agreement, the revised roles and responsibilities for the Armed Forces
Champions should be circulated to all Boroughs and Districts and offered as best
practice to the MoD and other counties. SCMPB should accept a responsibility to
review the actions from the Armed Forces Champions and Task Force Commanders
meetings and any other specific meetings and seminars organised to meet the
obligations agreed within the current and any revised SCC Armed Forces
Covenants.
4.10 Transformation within SCC
SCC education, highways, children, adults and human resources departments have
been encouraged to identify a member of staff to act as their military point of contact
(Service Champion). Individuals come together to review needs and report progress
within their respective Departments. SCC has also been working closely with
managers in Adult Social Care, Social Workers and Contact Centre staff to train
them and raise the awareness of the important role the Service charities provide in
support of veterans.
Impressively, the Human Resources (HR) Department has recognised the need to
improve how current and potential Armed Forces employees are supported by the
Council. They have developed an Armed Forces Employment Work Plan11 which
includes a series of deadlines to complete the work. The main elements of this
challenging Plan, which will culminate in the introduction of an HR best practice
policy, are:

10
11



Supporting Reservists deployed on active service, on their return to work and
in their day to day lives.



Attracting former Service personnel, including those who have held senior
positions, to apply to work in SCC and support their applications for
employment, while maintaining effective links with the MoD’s Career
Transition Partnership initiative.



Ensuring that SCC develop a culture of supporting the Armed Forces
community by identifying and removing any stigma.



Sharing the Armed Forces HR best practice policy across the County with the
District and Borough Councils and, where appropriate, with other counties.

Military Task Force Commanders/Armed Forces Champions – Conference notes
Armed Forces Employment Work Plan 2017-2018

11

Page 43

4.11 Audit Comments
SCC have prepared a dossier of case studies within their annual `Successes’
document12 which they have shared with the MoD and more widely with the civilian
and military communities within the County. Within the 2016-2017 document SCC
are able to record specific success in:


The education of young people – a regular newspaper containing guidance for
schools with Service children, an annual census of the number of Service
children in Surrey and establishing strong links with local Cadet units.



Employment – promoting the Reserves, Employer Recognition Scheme
Awards and discounts to the Armed Forces community.



Housing – supporting the exemption to the Local Connection criteria in the
Housing Allocation Scheme for Armed Forces personnel.



Health, wellbeing and welfare – supporting the needs of military young carers
and the training of staff who operate the Contact Centre as well as creating an
Armed Forces Lead Network within each of Surrey’s Clinical Commissioning
Groups.



Recognition and remembrance – support to the “Surrey in the Great War” war
memorials initiative and numerous public military events, including during
Armed Forces Week and Remembrance events



Local authorities – developing effective cross border relationships with
neighbouring Councils and the launch of the Forces Connect SE work to
ensure that the key Covenant requirements and objectives are embedded
within the mainstream service delivery through the sharing of best practice.



Conferences and seminars – supporting an annual Covenant conference,
twice yearly Armed Forces Campions and Task Force Commanders meetings
and hosting specific events when required, for example a meeting of military
welfare professionals.

Additionally, Surrey has been recognised at a national level for providing good
practice, and has had for the past two years case studies included within the
National Armed Forces Covenant Annual report13, which is debated in Parliament.
Surrey was also interviewed as part of the Local Government Association and
Forces in Mind Trust Research looking at how best to implement the Covenant within
local authorities. Best practice from Surrey was highlighted within the ‘Our
Community Our Covenant’14 report.

12

SCMPB – Armed Forces Covenant Successes 2016-2017
Armed Forces Covenant Annual Report, Ministry of Defence
14
Our Community – Our Covenant, Forces in Mind Trust
13

12

Page 44

4.12 Proposed Actions
Continuous effort, monitoring and reporting will be necessary to ensure that the
Armed Forces Employment Work Plan is effectively delivered and communicated to
Armed Forces employees. Continuing to capture and publicise case studies will
remain important not only to confirm progress but also to highlight the genuine
benefit from taking a fully integrated approach.

5. SCC Leadership Role
5.1 Boroughs and Districts
Although the Boroughs and Districts are autonomous in terms of decision making,
SCC has, for Armed Forces matters, consistently assumed a positive leadership
role. SCC has encouraged for them to enter into individual Armed Forces Covenant
arrangements while providing coordination of appropriate initiatives, particularly
where it is beneficial to share best practice, an example being the Roles and
Responsibilities of the Armed Forces Champions.
5.2 Audit Comments
All 11 Boroughs and Districts have signed individual Armed Forces Covenants as
have a number of companies within the County. SCC, working in close partnership
with the MoD’s Defence Relationship Management team, are proactively
encouraging companies and other organisations to sign Covenants. Surrey Police
and The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner have recently signed
individual Covenants with the MoD.
5.3 Proposed Actions
Benefit would be gained from receiving from SERFCA/DRM a register of
organisations and companies who have signed individual Covenants and those who
have received one of the MoD’s Employer Recognition Scheme awards. Sight of
such a register would enable the SCMPB to track and record progress and, more
importantly, to target effort in support of a continuous improvement programme.
5.4 Forces Connect South East
Taking a wider perspective and at the same time acknowledging their leadership
role, SCC recognised that there was an opportunity to work with adjacent counties
and authorities, primarily to improve the understanding staff have of their
responsibilities towards Armed Forces personnel, veterans and their families. Having
secured the support of Surrey Boroughs and Districts, East Sussex, West Sussex,
Kent and Hampshire County Councils, Brighton and Hove and Medway Councils,
RBL, SSAFA and the Sussex Armed Forces Network, SCC took their thinking to the
MoD in the form of an application for funds from the Armed Forces Covenant Fund.

13

Page 45

They successfully gained an award of £321,000 which included £40,000 to support
the roll out of best practice to other counties. MoD funding will be used to develop
training packages for front-line staff and increasing information and referral
pathways.
The project known as Forces Connect South East (SE)15 has the aim of:


Promoting a greater understanding and awareness of the issues affecting the
Armed Forces Community within public authorities to ensure the Covenant is
embedded and mainstreamed in service delivery, through sharing and
building on best practice.

5.5 Audit Comments
The project is now underway and is being well led by SCC who have introduced
appropriate governance arrangements to ensure that the two year programme is
delivered to time and cost and that resources are correctly apportioned and
effectively managed. The Member Board which has been established is chaired by
the Chairman of SCC, and quarterly returns are made to the MoD to report on
progress and spend. An external evaluation specification is currently out to tender
which will provide an independent view on the outcomes of the project. The
authorities who have committed to the project have agreed to work to achieve a
number of specific outcomes:


Having a good understanding of the needs of the Armed Forces community
and the expectations associated with effective delivery of the Covenant.



Clear integrated pathways that ensure the Armed Forces community benefit
from improved access and signposting to relevant information, advice,
guidance and support to ensure no disadvantage.



Ensuring that a partnership approach between the Armed Forces community
and local authorities is embedded within their ways of working.



Ensuring that the delivery of the Armed Forces Covenant within public sector
organisations across the South-East region is embedded and sustained.



Reducing, for the Armed forces community, any disadvantage in accessing
important public services such as housing, schools and adult social care.

5.6 Proposed Actions
Agreed outcomes from the programme must be monitored on a regular basis to
ensure that they remain relevant and that consistent and effective progress
continues to be made. It is suggested that a continuous audit will also be required,
particularly to identify and share best practice, which in some cases may well be
outside the scope of the project. Ultimately SCC will be required to confirm to the
15

Forces Connect South East - Overview

14

Page 46

MoD that the project is not only delivering genuine benefit in terms of the
performance of staff but also and, perhaps more importantly, that the Armed Forces
community is much more effectively supported across the South East and,
increasingly, given the additional funding from the MoD, across the United Kingdom.
Clear evidence of success will need to be gathered to support publicity which the
MoD will no doubt wish to assemble to confirm the value of the Armed Forces
Covenant Fund. Compelling evidence will also be necessary in the event that a
further application for funding becomes justified.

6. Engagement and Communications
6.1 Engagement
SCMPB has consistently recognised the importance of bringing the civilian and
military communities together in order to identify, discuss and where possible resolve
key integration issues. An annual conference16, targeted seminars and regular
meetings between the military Task Force Commanders and the Armed Forces
Champions have done much to improve the general understanding of the challenges
faced by the military community and a greater awareness of the support that is
currently available and how to access that support. By way of example, SCC
facilitated a meeting of military welfare officers within Surrey on 16 March 2017. A
range of issues were discussed, recorded in the Minutes17 and briefed to SCMPB.
6.2 Audit Comments
Key issues captured within the feedback18 process from the Annual Conference are
recorded within a document known as the You Said, We Did19 This process ensures
that, once identified, issues are not forgotten but instead are prioritised and allocated
to a military or civilian lead with specific responsibility to develop the issues and
report progress at appropriate future meetings. From time to time, SCMPB has
published a series of case studies20 and updates on successful projects21 to
highlight the support to the Armed Forces community and the support provided by
the Military, for example in response to the severe and damaging floods in 2014.
6.3 Proposed Actions
SCMPB should continue with the sequence of integrated conferences, seminars and
meetings as a means of retaining the interest in the Armed Forces Covenant
programme and as a mechanism to confirm progress while, at the same time,
16

SCMPB Armed Forces Covenant Conference 2016 - Agenda
Military Welfare Officers Meeting – 16 March 2017
18
SCMPB Surrey Community Covenant Conference 2016 - Feedback
19
You Said, We Did Document - 2016
20
SCMPB Case Studies
21
SCMPB Project Updates
17

15

Page 47

identifying current issues that need to be resolved. Continuing to publish case
studies will remain important in terms of highlighting the benefits of maintaining and,
hopefully enhancing, the relationship between the civilian and military communities.
Progress of the actions resulting from the You Said, We Did initiative should be
briefed regularly to the SCMPB Executive.
6.4 Communications
SCC appreciate the value of effective communications within the Council, with the
Boroughs and Districts and with the wider community, to include Service personnel,
their families and veterans. Using the search facility on the SCC website, it is
possible to navigate to the comprehensive section devoted to the Armed Forces.
SCC have, through their links with the local press, taken the opportunity to publicise
military events and successful integration projects across the County. SCC have also
funded a SCMPB stand which has been deployed to a number of key civic events to
highlight the role of SCMPB, particularly to the Armed Forces community by
signposting available support and advice. A press release22 was also circulated to
publicise that, the efforts made by SCC to support the Armed Forces community,
had been recognised by the MoD with the award of the Employer Recognition
Scheme Gold Award.
To support Surrey‘s Members of Parliament23 and Councillors24, SCMPB have
written a comprehensive briefing documents designed to help them and their staff
deal with Armed Forces Covenant related issues raised by Service personnel,
veterans and their families. The briefing document usefully includes information on
how to contact Borough and District Armed Forces Champions, the Service charities
and both Regular and Reserve units within Surrey. The remainder of the document
provides advice on how to obtain information on the following key matters:


Housing – getting on the waiting list.



Employment – re-training, interview skills, mentoring Career Transition
Partnership and CV writing.



Debt – financial advice from the Citizens Advice Bureau and Service charities.



Health – getting on a GPs and dentist waiting list.



Education – school admissions, Service Pupil Premium and early year’s
provision.

6.5 Audit Comments
Maintaining effective and frequent communications with all sections of the
community, including the Military, will be critical to the work to better integrate the
communities.
22

Employer Recognition Scheme Gold Award – Press release
SCMPB – Briefing for MPs and Case Workers – February 2016
24
SCMPB – Key Contact Information for Surrey Councillors - 2016
23

16

Page 48

6.6 Proposed Actions
Every opportunity should be taken to publicise events, activities and successful
projects. Ensuring that information is cascaded to all levels will be critical in future
campaigns to maintain interest, enthusiasm and commitment. Consideration should
be given to including, on the SCC Home Page, a direct link to the Armed Forces
pages. It is also suggested that relationships are developed with the Surrey
Communications Group to see how they may best help support the work going
forward.
6.7 Contact Centre
SCC have taken the step to ensure that staff manning their Contact Centre are
trained to deal with requests for help from the Service community25. Staff employed
to operate the Contact Centre are trained to understand that the Armed Forces
community can often be different. They now appreciate that, within the Armed
Forces community, there is a strong sense of pride and, as a direct consequence,
may be reluctant to seek help. They appreciate that Service personal and their
families move frequently within the United Kingdom and overseas, often at very short
notice and are therefore regularly isolated from the immediate support of their
families. Contact Centre staff also understand that Military bases and families’
accommodation are often in isolated locations and that the Armed Forces community
are generally not familiar with the processes for accessing local authority and other
public services. These differences combine to produce a potentially significant
impact in terms of help to resolve education concerns, access to health care and
benefits, employment opportunities and housing issues.
6.8 Audit Comments
Contact Centre staff have been briefed specifically on the need to familiarise
themselves with the support for the Armed Forces, signposted within the community
web pages. They have been asked to establish if a caller has a military background
or are a spouse or partner of a person serving in the Armed Forces or a veteran.
They are further trained to signpost individuals to the appropriate Service charities
and to maintain records which alert SCC to any particular trends. Following a
successful intervention, a case study has been developed setting out how asking the
question as to whether the person had served, led to a successful referral to a
service charity who was able to provide support. To date the SSAFA Surrey has
received 69 referrals from the Contact Centre and there is evidence from feedback
that their intervention has been both welcomed, necessary and successful.
6.9 Proposed Actions
SCC and particularly the Contact Centre must ensure that they are not duplicating
the advice which is now available from the recently launched MoD initiative,
Veterans Gateway, which brings together the Service charities in a combined effort
to support veterans. Staff will need to be briefed on the objectives of the Veterans
Gateway and have immediate access to their helpline details. Consideration should
be given, within the SCC website Home Page, to introducing a direct link to the
Contact Centre details.
25

The Armed Forces Community in Surrey – SCC Contact Centre

17

Page 49

7. Employer Recognition Scheme
7.1 Gold Award
The efforts made by SCC, particularly in support of their Reservist employees and
their families was recognised by the MoD in the award of Silver Employer
Recognition Scheme Award in 2015. The next year, following evidence that further
significant progress had been made, the MoD awarded SCC the Gold Award. SCC
remain a strong advocate of support to Reservist employees and in particular to
ensuring that, without in any way being disadvantaged, they are able to complete
their full training and, when required, their mobilised operational duties. The
Council’s approach has been not only to encourage staff to join the Reserves but
also and of equal importance to create an environment where Reservists want to
continue their service while employed by SCC. SCC is now the local authority
representative on the Gold Alumni Group which acts as a sounding board for the
Chief of Defence People at the MoD and looks at sharing best practice nationally
between Gold Award holders from a range of business sectors.
In order to recognise the contribution made by Reservist employees not only to the
military but also to their individual responsibilities within SCC, the Chairman invited
all Reservists to a Reception during Armed Forces Week 201726. The Reception was
held at the Guildford Fire Station which provided a most welcome opportunity for
SCC Reservists to meet their counterparts serving in the Surrey Police and Surrey
Fire and Rescue Service.
7.2 Audit Comments
SCC appreciate that their status as a Gold Award recipient is time limited and that, in
2019, they will need to justify to the MoD why they should retain the award. SCC is
committed to providing the necessary evidence to convince the MoD that they are
continuing to act as an exemplar and therefore fully deserving of a second Gold
Award. A further award would also enable SCC to continue its leadership role,
particularly in encouraging the Borough and Districts as they strive to demonstrate
continuous improvement and the gaining of their own Employer Recognition Scheme
Awards. SCC takes full advantage of the benefits available to them as a Gold Award
holder, including membership of the Gold Alumni Group and attendance at the
Sandhurst Leadership Challenge.
There is much evidence to confirm that SCC remains a strong supporter of the
Reserves in general and Reservist and Cadet Forces Adult Instructor employees in
particular27. By way of example:


26
27

SCC’s Leave Policy allows for up to 10 days paid leave to be taken to
complete annual training requirements. Special leave for Reservists must be
granted.

SCC Chairman’s invitation to Reservist employees
SCC Gold Award Nomination – How SCC Supports Defence

18

Page 50



SCC’s willingness to release Reservists for mobilised operational duties both
within the United Kingdom and overseas.



SCC’s positive approach to the employment of Reservists, veterans and
Cadet Forces Adult Instructors, thus making SCC attractive to potential
employees.



SCC’s established relationship with the MoD’s Career Transition Partnership
organisation to promote appropriate vacancies to those leaving the Services.



SCC’s work placement initiative for Service personnel who are to be, or have
been, medically discharged from the Services, leading in some cases to a full
time employment opportunity.



SCC’s approach to promoting volunteering, including as Cadet Adult Forces
Instructors.



SCC’s support to families of employees who have been mobilised or deployed
through the Employee Assistance Programme.



SCC’s plan to review and enhance their HR policies to better support the
commitments made within the Armed Forces Covenant, Reservists and the
Armed Forces community.

7.3 Proposed Actions
SCC must appreciate that the MoD will, quite rightly, seek compelling evidence of
performance in their support of Reservists and, more generally, the Council’s
approach to the delivery of their Armed Forces Covenant commitments. The MoD
will not only seek clarity of what has been achieved but also will wish to understand
SCC plans for the future in terms of policy and procedures in support of Reservist
employees. SCC must continue to demonstrate that they retain a firm understanding
of the importance of recruiting and retention in the Reserves and the relationship
between these critical and equally important and inextricably linked requirements.
Equal effort must therefore be given to support staff who may have an aspiration to
join the Reserves and to measures that encourage Reservist employees to remain
within the Reserves during their careers with SCC. Every opportunity should be
taken to highlight Reservist employees and their contribution to SCC and the Military
with emphasis on the much published fact that they are “twice a citizen”.

8. Concluding Comments
This audit confirms that SCC have taken seriously and diligently their responsibilities
and commitments agreed when signing the Armed Forces Covenant some five years

19

Page 51

ago. The amalgam of the findings from this initial audit indicate that consistent and
enthusiastic progress has been maintained , when it might have been assumed that,
over time, we could have witnessed gradual reduction in both commitment and effort.
On the contrary, this audit serves to demonstrate a determination within SCC and
particularly the high achieving Community Partnership and Safety Service, to strive
for continuous improvement in the support and services they provide for the Armed
Forces community. Maintaining an appropriate level of resources committed to this
work has been and will continue to be of critical importance as will be SCC’s
willingness to accept a strong leadership responsibility with the Boroughs and
Districts. There can be little doubt that the commitment, interest and leadership of
the current and previous SCC Chairman have had a significant impact on the
progress of the SCC Armed Forces Covenant objectives and the welfare and
wellbeing of the Armed Forces community within Surrey. SCC should be rightly
proud of what has been achieved within a relatively short period of time. Without in
any way wishing to appear complacent, SCC should recognise that continuous effort
is required or at least applied more effectively in the future. The short, medium and
long term actions recommended within this audit are designed to support the work of
SCC which, if delivered conscientiously, will help to support SCC’s publically stated
continuous improvement aspirations.

9. Recommended Actions
9.1 Short Term - Achieve the following within 6 months:


Remind staff of the key Armed Forces Covenant principles, SCC’s obligations
and their collective and individual responsibilities when engaging with the
Armed Forces community.



Retain Customer Service Excellence accreditation.



Confirm SCMPB priorities for 2018-2019 and publicise more widely within
SCC, Boroughs and Districts and all elements of the Military.



Agree the revised roles and responsibilities for the Armed Forces Champions
and circulate to Boroughs and Districts, to the MoD and to other counties,
particularity through the Forces Connect SE project.



Receive a quarterly update from SERFCA/DRM setting out the register of
organisations and companies who have either signed individual Covenants or
have received MoD Employer Recognition Awards.



Introduce a direct link to the Armed Forces pages from the SCC Home Page.

20

Page 52



Introduce a clearer direct link to the Contact Centre details from the SCC
Home Page.



Develop the Forces Connect SE cross border initiative.

9.2 Medium Term - Achieve the following within a period 6 – 12 months:


Ensure that SCMPB remains relevant to military requirements within Surrey.



Liaise with the MoD to encourage them to consider revising guidance to
ensure applicants speak to the local Civilian Military Partnership Board in
advance of submitting an application.



Review the structure and responsibilities of the Task Groups reporting into the
SCMPB, taking into account any future role of SCMPB Executive.



Develop clear and measurable Armed Forces Covenant objectives for
example:
o More effectively promoting SCC as an Armed Forces friendly
organisation.
o Greater recognition of the valuable skills and experience that Service
leavers and veterans bring to the Council.
o Promote and provide employment opportunities for Reservists,
veterans and spouse and partners.
o Support the rehabilitation of wounded, injured and sick Service
personnel.



When new objectives are agreed, consider signing a revised Armed Forces
Covenant at an appropriate high profile event involving the MoD.



Introduce a process for SCMPB or SCMPB Executive to review the key issues
raised by Armed Forces Champions and Task Force Commanders.



Enhance HR policies within SCC to better support the requirements of the
Armed Forces Covenant and the commitments made, particularly within the
main elements of the Armed Forces Employment Work Plan.



Continue to capture and publicise case studies to support the benefits of
adopting an integrated approach at all level within the County.



Continue the programme of conferences, seminars and meetings with the
Armed Forces community.

21

Page 53



Maintain a high profile in terms of publicising events, activities and success
stories.



Continue to highlight the contribution made within the workplace by Reservist
employees.



Ensure the appropriate alignment with the MoD’s Veterans Gateway initiative.



Progress the Forces Connect SE cross border initiative and share best
practice with other counties.

9.3 Long Term - Achieve the following in the period 12 – 24 months:


Deliver the Forces Connect SE cross border initiative.



Capture evidence necessary to confirm to the MoD that the Forces Connect
SE programme has been delivered effectively and that genuine benefit has
been gained by the Armed Forces community in the South East.



Introduce a process that will ensure the best practice is shared not only within
the South East but also with other counties.

22

Page 54

Item 8
SCMPB Conference Feedback and Next Steps
General Feedback
Very positive feedback was received from the conference. Particular highlights for delegates
were the presentations on Women 100, the Welsh Guards and Veterans Gateway. Some
comments included:








Thank you so much for a fantastic day at Deepcut, I certainly learned a great deal
and met some fantastic people.
Highly informative (and inspiring) and we’ve made some great contacts.
Well done for organising such a good conference
The day was very productive and lots of things were achieved
The Conference yesterday really was excellent - I scribbled down lots of notes and
came away both energised and wishing that every county was even half as engaged
as Surrey!
Thank you for inviting me to today’s conference. I came away with a much better
understanding of the Covenant and what it means in practice.

Key points delegates took away include:









Improved knowledge of the Covenant
Support available via Veterans Gateway
Training packages available for staff and councillors
Importance of identifying local need in covenant fund bids
Importance of engaging young people
Ensuring the organisations understand their obligations under the Covenant
Willingness of community to support both serving personnel and veterans
Financial support available to serving personnel and veterans

Improvements for future events included:




More detail on workshop details to enable more informed choice to be made
Better access to refreshments
Too much content – needed time for questions

Next steps
The workshop sessions have been written up and circulated. The Recognise and Remember
Task Group discussed the outcomes of their workshop at the meeting held on 9 March, and
an update will be provided at the meeting. Outcomes from the other three workshops will be
taken forward through Community Integration and meetings with relevant service managers.

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 9

Ash Manor School has proudly launched a
Combined Cadet Force (CCF) as part of the Cadet
Expansion Programme.
With Contingent Commander Lieutenant Nick Clifford
and SSI Captain Claire Hutton in post, some of the Cadets
have already had the opportunity to experience their first
camp, thanks to the support of the established CCF at
Wellington College.
Brigadier Matthew Lowe presented the Cadets berets which
bares the Grenadier Guards cap badge. The 1st Battalion
Grenadier Guards, currently based at Lille Barracks, have
also been supporting the Cadets to prepare for the units
drill parade as part of the official launch.
Ms Bailey, Head Teacher, said: “I am incredibly proud to
have a CCF in our school and it is fitting that we celebrate
this as a community an extended family of
Ash Manor School, the British Army and the
wider community in which we live.
—

—

The opportunities and benefits that the young people in
Ash Manor stand to gain through CCF are massive and
already I see the changes in confidence, leadership capacity,
discipline and attitudes that are supporting, educating and
developing the future in our community”.
Lieutenant Colonel Nigel Macgregor, Colonel Andy Wood,
Colonel Patrick Crowley (Ret’d), Mayor Nigel Manning and
Guildford Armed Forces Champion Councillor David Elms
were also in attendance.

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

